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September 28, 2018 
 

ADDENDUM NO.4 
 

FOR 
 

Comprehensive Custodial / Window Cleaning and Related Hygiene and Disposal Services for Chicago O’Hare 
International Airport. 

 
Specification No. 802753 

 

For which bids are scheduled to be opened in the City of Chicago, Bid and Bond Room 103, City Hall, 121 North LaSalle 
Street, Chicago, Illinois 60602, at 11:00 a.m., October 10, 2018. 
 
The following clarifications/answers to bidder’s questions for the above referenced Contract Documents are being 
issued to all prospective bidders. The questions and answers/clarifications by the City are for informational purposes 
only and do not amend the Contract Documents. 
 
BIDDER MUST ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF THIS ADDENDUM IN THE SPACE PROVIDED ON THE PROPOSAL EXECUTION 
PAGE. 
 
 
 

SECTION 1.  NOTICE OF REVISIONS/CHANGES/CLARIFICATIONS 
 
 
1. Article 5, Scope of Work and Detailed Specifications, Section 5.3-Labor Rate for Custodial Workers and 

Supervisors, is revised to include the following as the 2nd paragraph: 
 

For purposes of this Section, the Contractor will base wages and benefits on the Custodial Worker’s 
seniority.  “Seniority” is determined by the length of service of a regular employee at O’Hare 
International Airport.   For new employees, Contractor may implement a probationary period of not 
more than 45 calendar days of employment, during which time, employees have no seniority.   
 

2. “Bidder's Commitment To Utilize Business Enterprises Owned By People With Disabilities (BEPD)” 
affidavit is hereby replaced with attached revised “Bidder's Commitment To Utilize Business Enterprises 
Owned By People With Disabilities (BEPD)” affidavit with revision date 24-Sept-2018. 

 
3. Worksheets “Proposal Page Supplemental” for Bid Lines 1 through 4 are hereby replaced with attached 

revised worksheets “Proposal Page Supplemental” for Bid lines 1 through 4. 
 
4. Exhibit 14, “Minimum Hourly Wages” is added. 
 
5. Exhibit 15, “Seniority Summary of Present Workforce” is added. 
 
6. Article 5, Scope of Work and Detailed Specifications, Section 5.28 – Contractor Qualifications is deleted 

in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
  

5.28 Contractor Qualifications 
 Because of the nature of the work involved and the duration of this Contract, Contractor will be required 

to provide proof of its capabilities and competency to perform the work under this Contract. With the 
bid, the Contractor must provide a list containing a minimum of three (3) similar projects, including 
duration, location, scope, dollar value and a customer contact person and phone number. 
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Contractor must be regularly engaged and experienced in comprehensive custodial-window cleaning 
and related hygiene and disposal services. The Contractor must have demonstrated experience in 
cleaning and servicing multiple, high traffic restrooms in large-scale public and/or commercial peak 
driven facilities. 

 
Contractor must be prepared to provide a workforce which includes sufficient workers experienced with 
work at O’Hare International Airport in order to ensure smooth and efficient transfer of services. 

 
The Contractor must have the ability to supervise and perform work with that degree of skill, care and 
diligence normally exercised by experienced contractors performing the work of projects similar in 
scope. 

 
7. Article 5, Scope of Work and Detailed Specifications, Section 5.23 – Staffing Procedures / Staffing Plan, 

the last paragraph in Section 5.23 is replaced in its entirety with the following: 
  

All Key Personnel and the annual Staffing Plan must be approved by the CDA upon the award and prior 
to the start of the Contract. Staffing should include sufficient custodial workers with prior O’Hare 
experience in order to ensure smooth and efficient transfer of services. The Contractor must provide 
Key Personnel staffing of appropriate gender in order to conduct inspections of Men’s and Women’s 
Restrooms on all shifts. The CDA may, at will, disapprove the use of certain personnel on the Contract or 
require that certain personnel be replaced or reassigned to a different task or area. 
 

8. Article 1, Requirements for Bidding and Instructions to Bidders, Section 1.22.4 – Bid Incentives for 
Veteran-Owned Small Local Business and Eligible Joint Ventures, is replaced in its entirety with the 
following: 

 
 1.22.4. Bid Incentives for Veteran-Owned Small Local Businesses and Eligible Joint Ventures  

1.22.4.1. Definitions 
For purposes of this section only, the following definitions shall apply: 

 
"Bid incentive" means an amount deducted, for bid evaluation purposes only, from the contract base 
bid in order to calculate the bid price to be used to evaluate the bid on a competitively bid contract.  

 
"Contract base bid" means the total dollar amount a contractor bids on a contract without factoring any 
bid incentive or percentage reductions to the bid amount.  

 
"Eligible joint venture" means an association of one or more small local business enterprises in 
combination with one or more veteran-owned business enterprises, proposing to perform as a single 
for-profit business enterprise, in which each joint venture partner contributes property, capital, efforts, 
skill and knowledge. Joint ventures must have an agreement in writing specifying the terms and 
conditions of the relationship between the partners and their respective roles in the contract.  

 
"Local business enterprise" means a business entity located within the counties of Cook, DuPage, Kane, 
Lake, McHenry or Will in the State of Illinois (the "Six County Region"), which has the majority of its 
regular, full time work force located within the Six County Region. 

 
"Owned" means having all of the customary incidents of ownership, including the right of disposition, 
and sharing in all of the risks, responsibilities and profits commensurate with the degree of ownership.  

 
"Prime contractor" means a person who is the primary contractor on a contract.  
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"Small business enterprise" means: (i) for a construction business enterprise, a small business 
enterprise, as the term is defined in MCC 2-92-670; or (ii) for a non-construction business enterprise, a 
business enterprise which is not an established business, as the term is defined in MCC 2-92-640. 

 
"Small local business enterprise" ("SBE") means a local business enterprise which is also a small business 
enterprise.  

 
"Veteran-owned business enterprise" means an enterprise which: (1) is at least 51 percent owned by 
one or more veterans, or in the case of a publicly held corporation, at least 51 percent of all classes of 
the stock of which is owned by one or more veterans, whose management, policies, major decisions and 
daily business operations are independently managed and controlled by one or more veterans; and (2) 
has been: (i) certified by the City as a veteran-owned small local business pursuant to MCC 2-92-930; (ii) 
certified by the County of Cook as a veteran business enterprise; (iii) certified by the State of Illinois as a 
qualified service-disabled veteran-owned small business or a qualified veteran-owned small business 
pursuant to 30 ILCS 500/45-57; or (iv) verified and approved by the United States Department of 
Veterans Affairs as a service-disabled veteran-owned small business or a veteran-owned small business. 

 
"Veteran-owned small local business" ("VBE") means a business that is both a veteran-owned business 
enterprise and a small local business enterprise, and which has been certified by the City as a veteran-
owned small local business pursuant to MCC 2-92-930. 

 
"Veteran" means a person who has served in the United States armed forces and was discharged or 
separated under honorable conditions. 

 
 1.22.4.2 Bid Incentive 

Unless otherwise prohibited by any federal, state or local law, the CPO shall allocate a bid incentive of 
5% of the contract base price, in accordance with section 2-92-950 of the MCC, to any qualified bidder 
that is a veteran-owned small local business or an eligible joint venture.   

 
The bid incentive is used only to calculate an amount to be used in evaluating the bid to determine the 
low bidder, and it does not affect the contract price. 

 
Bidders desiring to receive this incentive must submit an affidavit and other supporting documents 
demonstrating that the bidder satisfies all pertinent requirements as a veteran-owned small local 
business or an eligible joint venture.  Bidders should consult the DPS regulations regarding this incentive 
and be prepared to comply with the self-performance requirements, which in some circumstances affect 
the calculation of MBE and WBE participation toward contract goals when a small business enterprise 
involved in receiving this incentive is also a certified MBE or WBE. 

 
As a condition of being awarded the bid incentive, the veteran-owned small local business or eligible 
joint venture shall continue to meet the definition of a veteran-owned small local business or an eligible 
joint venture. If a contract is awarded to the veteran-owned small local business or eligible joint 
venture, upon completion of the work, any veteran-owned small local business or eligible joint venture 
that receives a bid preference but fails to meet the definition of a veteran-owned small local business or 
eligible joint venture during the term of the contract for which the bid incentive was awarded shall be 
fined in an amount equal to three times the amount of the bid incentive awarded.  

 
The contractor shall maintain adequate records necessary to ensure compliance with this section and 
shall submit such reports as required by the chief procurement officer. Full access to the contractor’s 
and subcontractors’ records shall be granted to the chief procurement officer, the commissioner of the 
supervising department, the inspector general, or any duly authorized representative thereof. The 
contractor and subcontractor shall maintain all relevant records a period that is the longer of seven 
years or as after final acceptance of the work in accordance with the Local Records Act. 
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SECTION 2.  CLARIFICATIONS TO QUESTIONS 
 

The City’s response (in bold italics) follows each question in the table below. 
 

Question 1: With respect to the sliding wage rates dictated in the BOMA Agreement that are based on 
seniority, does the time worked on the current contract by an employee count towards this or 
would all current employees if hired by the new contractor start as new employees with  
no seniority? This could make a significant cost difference for this bid not only for the base 
wages, but for vacation accruals. 

Response: Consistent with Section 5.3 as revised, time worked on the current contract will count toward 
seniority. 

Question 2: With respect to wage rates used for Bid Line 1- Are we to use the initial BOMA rates and then 
apply for an escalation each year or are we to provide a blended rate for the 5-year term of the 
contract? 

Response: Provide a blended rate for wages.  See revised worksheet Proposal Page Supplemental Bid Line 1 
and Exhibit 14 Minimum Hourly Wages. 

Question 3: Is the air field the only approach to travel to service the towers? Are there check-points? Is 
there a special clearance needed? 

Response: Cleaning of the towers will be coordinated between the FAA, CDA, and Contractor at the time of 
execution.   The towers can be reached via non-airside roads.   There is no need to go through 
airside security check points or have special clearance beyond the normal badging requirements.  

Question 4: How extensive is call in “On Demand” labor for projects? Annual budget or projected labor 
hours? 

Response: Please see section 5.27.5 “Bid Line 5 & 6” of the solicitation document.   The proposal pages 
provide estimated quantities for hours over the five-year contract term however, CDA will only 
utilize the hours that it deems necessary. 

Question 5: Who handles spills in the terminal is areas just outside the boundaries of the areas we service 
(i.e. gates, for service providers, retailers, baggage claim)? 

Response: The airlines and tenants are responsible for cleaning these areas on a regular basis and have 
engaged various companies to do so.  That said, it is expected if the Contractor employed under 
the subject contract sees a spill in an area adjacent to what is within the typically parameters of 
this contract, that they will clean up or secure the spill in order to reduce slipping hazards.  They 
should also advise CDA of the spill, so it can make sure the proper tenant is made aware of the 
issue. 

Question 6: Page 11 refers to locally manufactured goods. Do you have a list of Chicago City or Illinois State 
approved vendors? 

Response: See section 1.22.2 “Locally Manufactured Goods”.  The City does not maintain a list of approved 
vendors. 

Question 7: Page 12 refers to credits for alternate fuels. Is propane considered an alternate fuel? Is there an 
electric vehicle charging station available to us in a non-pay parking area? Is there a cost 
associated with electrical vehicle charging? 

Response: Please see section 1.22.3, “Alternatively Powered Vehicle Bid Incentive” There are no electric 
vehicle charging stations in non-revenue areas. There is a cost to use the charging stations in the 
pay parking lots in addition to the parking fees. 

Question 8: Regarding a VET owned business; Can an out of state firm qualify for the 5% credit if an 
application for Chicago/Illinois certification is pending? 

Response: Firms must be certified in accordance with MCC 2-92-586 as of the date of the bid opening.  Please 
see revised BEPD incentive form attached.    

Question 9: We could not find a Chicago or Illinois certified BEPD contractor. Can we use an out of state 
certified firm that applies for Chicago/Illinois Certification? 
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Response: Yes, but firms must be certified in accordance with MCC 2-92-586 as of the date of the bid 
opening. Please see revised BEPD incentive form attached. 

Question 10: What is the projected costs of badges for the next 5 years? 

Response: There are no monetary costs for badges.  

Question 11: Page 82 refers to potentially adding up to 15 washrooms without increase in staffing. How 
could that be done without additional labor? Would other aspects of the specification be 
reduced to free up the labor needed for the 24/7 cleaning needs of the washrooms? 

Response: Please see Section 5.25 “Minimum Routine Custodial Shift Staffing Allocations” of the solicitation 
document. The staffing allocations noted are minimum requirements, however it is anticipated the 
Contractor could reallocate manpower and materials to cover the additional square footage 
without the need for additional personnel and supplies. 

Question 12: Do washroom/hygiene dispensers need to be new or will “like new” be excepted? 

Response: See section 5.21. With the exception of the feminine hygiene disposal system which uses 
receptacles  that are swapped on a regular schedule with clean, disinfected  units and which the 
Contractor must provide at the onset of this contract as the existing contractor is not required to  
leave this system in place at the end of the current agreement,    other product dispensers are 
already installed and the Contractor may elect to utilize all existing dispensers  or may choose to 
provide new dispensers to CDA to be installed.   If the Contractor elects to provide different 
equipment than what is currently installed, the equipment must be new when provided to the City 
for installation. In the event the dispensers break the Contractor may elect to provide the parts for 
the City to provide labor to repair rather than replace the dispensers. The City will make the 
determination if the item is serviceable or beyond repair and will require the Contractor to provide 
the replacement equipment. 

Question 13: Does the airport provide any specialized training for terrorism, disasters or other life-
threatening disasters? Are those training hours subsidized by the airport? 

Response: Yes, the City provides specialized training. No, the City will not pay additional compensation for 
attendance at this training.    The Contractor’s General Manager and / or shift managers would be 
required to attend the training.    Relevant information would then be the passed on by the shift or 
general managers to the Contractor’s employees as necessary.  

Question 14: What are traveler increase projections for the next five (5) years? 

Response: 2019   4.1% 
2020    .5% 
2021    .6% 
2022    .7% 
2023    .6% 

Question 15: Please clarify the wages to be paid pursuant to this specification. Particularly, please clarify the 
conflict between Section 3.3.6 – Wages and Section 5.3 – Labor Rate for Custodial Workers and 
Supervisors. Does Section 5.3 supersede Section 3.3.6 in terms of wages as the BOMA wage is 
greater than the prevailing wage, living wage, the Chicago Minimum Wage and the State or 
Federal Minimum Wage specified in Section 3.3.6? 

Response: Contractor must always pay the highest applicable minimum wage for each employee.   

Question 16: Is the BOMA wage the minimum any Contractor can pay the custodians pursuant to this spec 
irrespective of any other wage law/ordinance or collective bargaining agreement? 

Response: See answer to question 15.   

Question 17: If BOMA is the true base or minimum wage a Contractor can pay consistent with Section 5.3, 
please clarify how existing employees will be compensated. Will they all start at the year 1 rate 
of the BOMA wage or based on their current seniority at the Airport? 

Response: See answer to question 1. 

Question 18: If employees are to be paid the BOMA wage consistent with their current seniority at the 
Airport, how will all contractors know how to price existing employees based on their current 
seniority? Will the seniority list of existing employees be shared with all contractors? 

Response: See answer to question 1.  A seniority summary of the present workforce is provided as Exhibit 15. 
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Question 19: In the event a Contractor can pay less than BOMA and section 5.3 does not supersede Section 
3.3.6, how do you treat workers who have been employed at the airport for the past several 
years? 

Response: See answer to question 1. 

Question 20: If a Contractor can pay less than BOMA, is it the City’s intention to have the existing workers 
take a pay cut and get paid less than they are currently being paid under the existing agreement 
in order to keep their job? 

Response: Contractor may not pay less than BOMA. 

Question 21: Under Section 5.3.2.1 it is required that a Contractor pay either the benefits included in Article 
XIII or the BOMA agreement or pay the costs specified in Section 5.3.2.1. The amounts in the 
BOMA agreement and in Section 5.3.2.1 appear to be the same, so is the only difference 
whether you make payments to the SEIU Employers Health Trust or the employee directly or 
provide Health Benefits up to the costs specified? 

Response: Yes.    

Question 22: Under Section 5.3.2.1; what types of coverage plans should be made available to employees? 
Single coverage? Family coverage? Please specify. 

Response: This is at the discretion of the contractor.    

Question 23: With respect to the Health and Welfare benefits specified per section 5.3.2.1, do the employees 
need to be full time employees to qualify for such benefits? If so, what is the definition of “full 
time” we should use to determine eligibility for such benefits? 

Response: See BOMA agreement for pro-rata calculation for less than full time employees.    

Question 24: For purposes of the Health and Welfare benefits specified per section 5.3.2.1, is it permissible 
to pay the contributions specified for eligible employees directly to a health insurance 
provider? 

Response: Yes. 

Question 25: Under Section 5.3.2.2 is it acceptable for the Contractor to provide a 401(k) or similar 
retirement plan and pay the benefits in the amount specified under that section to such a 
retirement plan? 

Response: Yes. 

Question 26: With respect to Section 5.3.2.4 – Vacations, is the years of service specified with respect to the 
time the employee has been employed by the Contractor in general or with respect to the 
amount of time the employee has worked on the jobsite at ORD? 

Response: See answer to question 1. 

Question 27: Section 5.3.2.8 – Other, specifies a requirement that the Contractor pay all pension/retirement 
benefits are provided in the BOMA agreement. Are there any other requirements of the BOMA 
agreement that this section is meant to cover that a Contractor that is not a signatory to the 
BOMA agreement will be required to provide to the employees? 

Response: All applicable BOMA pension/retirement requirements are described in the solicitation documents.    

Question 28: Under Section 5.4 – Holidays and Weekends – the spec indicates that the City does not 
anticipate requiring window cleaning services on holidays or weekends including New Year’s, 
Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas Day. As a result, 
should the Contractor assume that it should not schedule window washers for these six (6) 
holidays? If so, can you please confirm that the Contractor’s invoices will not be audited or 
deducted for not providing said personnel on these six (6) holidays? 

Response: Yes, for both questions.  

Question 29: Who is the incumbent contractor and how long have they been providing their services? 

Response: United Maintenance, under PO 26971 which began December 15,2012 and is still in effect. 

Question 30: What is the current contracted monthly price and yearly price? 

Response: $1,919,481.23 is the monthly price. The annual fee is twelve times the monthly price.  

Question 31: Can you provide us with the bid tab sheet form the last bid opening? 

Response: The bid tabulation from the current contract’s bid solicitation can be viewed at: 
http://webapps.cityofchicago.org/VCSearchWeb/org/cityofchicago/vcsearch/controller/bidTabs/

http://webapps.cityofchicago.org/VCSearchWeb/org/cityofchicago/vcsearch/controller/bidTabs/begin.do?agencyId=city


Addendum No. 4 / Specification No. 802753 
Page 7 of 15 

 

 

begin.do?agencyId=city  Search for Specification 97533. 

Question 32: Is it possible to get the current supply usages from the current contractor? 

Response: Please see Page 173 of the solicitation document.  

Question 33: Is the scope/size of this bid identical with the current contract? 

Response: The current contract’s scope is available at the website listed below. Bidders may review the scope 
and contract modifications to determine the differences between the two scopes. The main 
differences include the removal of hygienic toilet seats that were originally included in PO 26971 
as well as the addition of Bid Line Items 2-4 for the of the exterior cleaning of the Terminal 1 
Façade and South and North FAA Towers North and South Towers. Upon pulling up the PO click 
the “Details Button to view contract mods. 

http://webapps.cityofchicago.org/VCSearchWeb/org/cityofchicago/vcsearch/controller/c
ontracts/begin.do?agencyId=city 
Search for Contract Number (PO) 26971 

Question 34: Have there been any changes from the previously awarded contract to current request for bid? 

Response: See answer to question 33. 

Question 35: Are there any significant changes from the last bid? 

Response: See answer to question 33. 

Question 36: What are the criteria for awarding the contract? 

Response: See Section 5.2 “Basis of Award” of the solicitation document.  

Question 37: Can you specify the percentage of each category; Price, qualification, experience, etc.? 

Response: See Section 5.2 “Basis of Award” of the solicitation document.   As this a low bid contract, there 
are no weights (percentages) for scoring assigned to categories.  

Question 38: Can you city provide carpet to tile % per location? 

Response: Carpeted areas are less than 1% of the total cleanable space. Examples of carpeted area, include 
but are not limited to offices in the terminals and the children’s play area.  

Question 39: Why did these facilities come up for bid at this time? 

Response: Existing Contract is expiring.  

Question 40: Has the contract price been increased for the past years? 

Response: This is not relevant to bidding the current solicitation, however contract modifications to the 
existing contract can be viewed at the website noted in question 33.  For the price adjustment 
provision applicable to the current solicitation please see section 5.7 “Price Adjustment”.  

Question 41: Will it be awarded a single bidder or multiple bidders? 

Response: Single Bidder  

Question 42: Are the current vendor's employees union members? 

Response: No 

Question 43: Is it mandatory to hire union members? 

Response: No 

Question 44: Please send me the copy of last bid proposals. 

Response: Please see answer to question 31. 

Question 45: What is the accuracy of the product usage, case counts, and volume of the products available? 

Response: Accurate to the best of CDA’s knowledge.  

Question 46: What is the projected traffic and volume through the airport monthly? What can the expected 
traffic be in the coming year or in the next five years? 

Response: 67,400,000 Annually. Please see the Fly Chicago website for more details.  
http://www.flychicago.com/business/CDA/factsfigures/Pages/airtraffic.aspx. 
For Future projections please see answer to question 14. 

Question 47: Section 5.21- Are we responsible for procurement and maintenance of the Napkin/Tampon and 
Diaper vending machines in women and family restrooms? 

Response: The Contractor is responsible for the procurement of the Napkin/Tampon and Diaper vending 
machines in women and family restrooms. The Contractor may elect to utilize the equipment 
which is already installed, however any equipment that requires replacement either due to 
breakage and / or the Contractor electing to install a different product (subject to Commissioner 

http://webapps.cityofchicago.org/VCSearchWeb/org/cityofchicago/vcsearch/controller/bidTabs/begin.do?agencyId=city
http://webapps.cityofchicago.org/VCSearchWeb/org/cityofchicago/vcsearch/controller/contracts/begin.do?agencyId=city
http://webapps.cityofchicago.org/VCSearchWeb/org/cityofchicago/vcsearch/controller/contracts/begin.do?agencyId=city
http://www.flychicago.com/business/CDA/factsfigures/Pages/airtraffic.aspx
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approval) must be procured by the Contractor. The CDA will install units provided the Contractor 
and will also repair units, to the extent possible with parts supplied by the Contractor.   The City 
will make the determination if the item is serviceable or beyond repair and will require the 
Contractor to provide the replacement equipment.    

Question 48: Section 5.21- Are we responsible for procurement and maintenance of the air freshener 
dispenser machines in all restrooms?  Is the replacement product billable or assumed in base 
price? 

Response: The Contractor is responsible for the procurement of   the air freshener dispenser machines in all 
restrooms. The Contractor may elect to utilize the equipment which is already installed, however 
any equipment that requires replacement either due to breakage and / or the Contractor electing 
to install a different product (subject to Commissioner approval) must be procured by the 
Contractor. The CDA will install units provided the Contractor and will also repair units, to the 
extent possible with parts supplied by the Contractor. The replacement product is not separately 
billable to the City as all materials are deemed incidental to the monthly price.   The City will make 
the determination if the item is serviceable or beyond repair and will require the Contractor to 
provide the replacement equipment. 

Question 49: Section 5.21- Are we responsible for procurement and maintenance of the hand sanitizing 
machines?  Is the replacement product billable or assumed in base price? 

Response: The Contractor is responsible for the procurement of   the hand sanitizing machines.   The 
Contractor may elect to utilize the equipment which is already installed, however any equipment 
that requires replacement either due to breakage and / or the Contractor electing to install a 
different product (subject to Commissioner approval) must be procured by the Contractor.     The 
CDA will install units provided the Contractor and will also repair units, to the extent possible with 
parts supplied by the Contractor.    The replacement product is not separately billable to the City 
as all materials are deemed incidental to the monthly price.   The City will make the determination 
if the item is serviceable or beyond repair and will require the Contractor to provide the 
replacement equipment. 

Question 50: Section 5.21.2- Are we responsible for procurement and maintenance of the sharps disposal 
system? 

Response: The Contractor is responsible for the procurement of the sharps disposal system. The Contractor 
may elect to utilize the equipment which is already installed, however any equipment that 
requires replacement either due to breakage and / or the Contractor electing to install a different 
product (subject to Commissioner approval) must be procured by the Contractor. The CDA will 
install units provided the Contractor and will also repair units, to the extent possible with parts 
supplied by the Contractor. The replacement product is not separately billable to the City as all 
materials are deemed incidental to the monthly price.  The City will make the determination if the 
item is serviceable or beyond repair and will require the Contractor to provide the replacement 
equipment. 

Question 51: Please supply annual overall passenger traffic. 

Response: Please see answer to question 46. 

Question 52: Please supply annual passenger traffic by terminal. 

Response: Passenger traffic volume is not tracked by terminal. 

Question 53: What is the process if consumable case counts are exceeded?  Contractor responsibility YES OR 
NO? 

Response: The consumable case counts from the existing contract are provided to assist bidders in 
assembling their bids.  Bidders should utilize their knowledge of the industry as well as the 
information provided to determine their costs for consumable materials which should then be 
incorporated into their bid pricing. Case counts being exceeded are the Contractor’s responsibility 
and may not be billed separately to the City. 

Question 54: Are all window cleaners Local 1 as well? 

Response: No 

Question 55: Please provide invoicing from the current contractor for previous 12 months. 
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Response: This is not deemed relevant to bidding on the current solicitation. 

Question 56: On the Bid Submittal #2 Insurance Certificate of Coverage – is there a Specific Form you want 
filled in or do we simply provide a sample certificate of insurance from our Vendor showing 
coverages that meet or exceed your requirements? 

Response: A Sample Certificate of Insurance with appropriate coverages is to be provided. 

Question 57: Can we submit additional information such as training, hiring process, safety, technology, 
quality programs, etc.? If so, where do we place in the response, at the end? 

Response: Those items are not required by the Specification document but can be added if deemed necessary 
by the bidder.  

Question 58: Section 1.16.2, May we get an ‘official bid enclosure envelope’ via mail or must it be picked up 
in person? 

Response: The official bid enclosure envelope is not required to submit a bid as long as it is properly marked 
as required per Spec. 

Question 59: We understand the Hygiene Toilet Seat installation/maintenance/supply usage has been 
removed from the current contract, what is the current monthly contract amount with the 
Hygiene removed? 

Response: Please see answer to question 30. 

Question 60: Has the incumbent contractor received any deductions and/or penalties or fines in the last 2 
years? If so, what were those deductions, penalties and/or fines in dollar value and for what 
reason, for each of those 2 years? 

Response: Yes, there have been deductions for not meeting the minimum staffing requirements.   The dollar 
values of the deductions vary from month to month depending on manpower shortages.  The 
dollar value of the deductions is not deemed relevant to bidding the current agreement. 

Question 61: In order to respond properly to the RFP, bidders need to understand the seniority of the 
Janitorial Staff. As required in the RFP sections 5.3.1 to 5.3.2.4 (pages 67-70), staff are to be 
Paid by seniority and also benefits such as Vacation are also determined by length of service in 
the new RFP and, thus, we must know what Tier they fall into in order to properly provide 
accurate pricing. 
 
“For all other Custodial Workers, the following wage rate applies: 
During a Worker’s 1st year of employment - $3.40 below the rate of 5th year employees. 
During a Worker’s 2nd year of employment - $2.90 below the rate of 5th year employees. 
During a Worker’s 3rd year of employment - $2.40 below the rate of 5th year employees. 
During a Worker’s 4th year of employment - $1.90 below the rate of 5th year employees. 
At the time the Worker reaches his/her 5th year (and above) of employment, his/her wage rate 
will be equivalent to the wage rate for 5th year employees during the applicable time period.” 
 
“Vacation Based on years of service, Contractor (and its subcontractors) must provide regularly-
employed Custodial Workers on this Contract with paid vacation days per year as follows: 
One year one week 
Two years two weeks 
Six years two weeks and one day 
Seven years two weeks and two days 
Eight years two weeks and three days 
Nine years two weeks and four days 
Ten years three weeks 
Eighteen years four weeks 
Twenty-five years five weeks” 
Page 2 of 3 
 
In order for fair and open competition, can the City provide a listing of employee seniority, or 
have the incumbent provide that information. Even simply hire dates would allow us to 
estimate tiers. Or at a minimum, provide the percentage of staff in each category of seniority 
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effective 10/1/2018? That is, % less than 1 year, % 1 year, % 2 years, etc? 

Response: See answer to question 1.  A seniority summary of the present workforce is provided as Exhibit 15. 

Question 62: The same argument for receiving Window Washing Staff seniority applies to vacations. In order 
for fair and open competition, can the City provide a listing of employee seniority for Window 
Washers, or have the incumbent provide that information or percentage in each vacation tier? 

Response: See answer to question 1.  A seniority summary of the present workforce is provided as Exhibit 15. 

Question 63: The Window Washer Pay Rates listed in the RFP are from the Illinois Prevailing Wage that went 
into effect on July 1, 2017. No Pay Rates were provided for the first 3 Contract Years (2018 – 
2020), as was the case for the Janitors. Since no adjustment will occur until after the 3rd year of 
the contract, please provide Pay rates for the first 3 Contract Years? 

Response: See Section 5.7, labor rates for window washers may be adjusted after the first twelve months to 
reflect changes in Prevailing Wage rate. 

Question 64: For Window Washers, in order to provide accurate pricing, bidders need to know how many of 
the 40 Window Washer employees possess an A Card and a B Card? 

Response: The Contractor must determine the quantities / types of window cleaners necessary based on 
staffing levels and the scope of work contained in the bid solicitation. 

Question 65: How many of the Window Washers receive today the Single Coverage Benefit and how many 
receive the Family Coverage Benefit? In addition, since no Health and Welfare Rates were 
provided for the first 3 Contract Years (2018 – 2020), as was the case for the Janitors, and 
because no adjustment will occur until after the 3rd year of the contract, please provide Health 
and Welfare rates for the first 3 Contract Years? 

Response:  

 

Question 66: Based on the requirement that all dispensers for hygiene and sharps be replaced at the start of 
the contract and as necessary throughout the life of the contract, is there any City requirement 
that the removal and installation services for these dispensers be performed by union trades 
employees, as required under the Multi Project Labor Agreement? If so, which trade must 
perform this work? 

Response: See section 5.21 and answer to questions 47 and 50. The Contractor is not required to replace all 
dispensers for hygiene and sharps be replaced at the start of the contract. The Contractor may 
elect to utilize the existing feminine hygiene product dispensers and sharps disposal bins. If the 
Contractor elects to change the existing equipment and or/ in the event the equipment breaks, the 
Contractor will procure and provide replacement dispensers and sharps receptacles to the CDA for 
CDA to install. The Contractor is not responsible for installation. 

Question 67: Will the City allow the successful contractor use the City trades employees to provide the 
removal and installation of these dispensers? If so, at what cost per hour? 

Response: The City will handle removal and installation at no cost to the Contractor.  

Question 68: What is the current cost per employee for employee parking? 

Response: Parking costs can be found on the Fly Chicago website.  
http://www.flychicago.com/ohare/tofrom/parking/pages/general.aspx  

Question 69: What is the current badging costs today, for fingerprinting, background investigation, security 
threat assessment and SIDA instruction? 

Response: Please see answer to question 10. 

Question 70: What is the cost for re-badging and how often does this occur for each employee? 

Response: Please see answer to question 10. Badges have to be renewed yearly.   Badging may not take 
place while the worker is supposed to be working on this contract. 

Question 71: In Section 5.21 of the “Scope of Work and Detailed Specification” the City references that there 
are 4 types of Napkin/Tampon Dispensers, can the City provide the quantities of each type of 
dispenser currently installed at ORD? 

http://www.flychicago.com/ohare/tofrom/parking/pages/general.aspx
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Response: Please refer to section 5.21 of the solicitation document. The City does not have an inventory of 
equipment by manufacturer. 

Question 72: Is there any window cleaning lift equipment that the City will make available to the successful 
bidder? If so, please identify the type of equipment and quantities available to the Contractor. 

Response: No, the City does not have any equipment to provide to the Contractor.  It is the Contractor’s 
responsibility to provide all lift and cleaning equipment. 

Question 73: Within each of the “Proposal Page Supplemental Bid Line” forms, there is a “Non-Labor Costs” 
item for Life Equipment. Can you please provide a listing of equipment that the City is expecting 
to be included in this line item? 

Response: Please see revised Proposal Page Supplementals where the word has been corrected to read “Lift” 
instead of “Life”. It is the Contractor’s responsibility to determine what equipment is required to 
service the contract requirements.  

Question 74: In Specification 802753, it states that the contractor is to provide Purell Wall Dispensers, please 
provide the quantity of dispensers that will be provided and serviced under this contract. 

Response: Please see section 5.21, bullet point O of the solicitation document.  

Question 75: Since the hygienic toilet seat mechanisms are not included in this contract and we have been 
told that the City removed these units, can you provide the estimated monthly usage that you 
are now incurring for toilet seat covers throughout the terminal facilities? 

Response: Approximately 1,500,000 seatings per month based on monthly usage of 300 Cases x 20 packs in a 
case x 250 sheets in a pack. 

Question 76: Proposal Page 139 Lines 2, 3 & 4 - Façade & Exterior Cleaning: 
a. Who completes this work? 
b. Is this included in the current janitorial billing and budget or is it a separate Contract? 
c. What is the current price per usage by line item? 

Response: A. The Contractor. 
B. This work is not included in the current contract.  This work has not been done for quite some 

time. 
C. This work is not included in the current contract. 

Question 77: Once a company has been deemed responsive, are there any other criteria other than lowest 
price to determine the selected Company? In other words, are there ranked or scored levels of 
experience, review of a quality plan or technology, etc. that can set a company apart and will 
be factored into the final selection? 

Response: Please see section 5.2, “Basis of Award”. 

Question 78: Will the City provide the Cost page forms, Pages 138-143 in an editable excel format? 

Response: No, please fill in the forms provided in the bid document. 

Question 79: Will the City provide the Bid Form(s) in an editable pdf or word doc? 

Response: No, please fill in the forms provided in the bid document. 

Question 80: Page 145, City Based Business Affidavit. If you are a nationwide business but have an office in 
Chicago, does this count as a City-based Business? 

Response: Please see section 1.22.1, City Based Business (Chicago Business Preference)” for requirements 
necessary to claim this bid incentive. 

Question 81: Page 145, City Based Business Affidavit. Regarding the 4% level, does the current contract 
utilize and meet this requirement? Are a majority of current the staff at ORD under this 
contract Chicago residents? 

Response: Please see section 1.22.1, City Based Business (Chicago Business Preference)” for requirements 
necessary to claim this bid incentive. The residency of the worker is not what determines the City 
based Business applicability. 

Question 82: Confirming that proposals via FedEx should be sent to: 
Bid & Bond Room, City Hall, Room 103, 121 N. LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60602 

Response: Please see section 1.16.1,”Date Time and Place” 

Question 83: Are we to assume the Union Seniority dates of the current employees working for United 
Maintenance on the ORD Janitorial contract? 
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a. If we are to assume their current seniority, can we get a list of each employee’s 
seniority and current wage. 

Response: See answer to question 1.  A seniority summary of the present workforce is provided as Exhibit 15.  

Question 84: What is considered the definition of a Full-Time employee? 
a. How many hours per week must an employee work to be considered Full Time? 

Response: 40 hours per week is considered full-time. 

Question 85: Are the current Terminal Window Washers United Maintenance employees or subcontracted. 
a. If they are subcontract workers, what is the name of the company that is performing 

this service. 

Response: This information is not deemed relevant to bidding this solicitation.    

Question 86: Are the current Control Tower Window Washers United Maintenance employees or 
subcontracted. 

a. If they are subcontract workers, what is the name of the company that is performing 
this service. 

Response:  This is a new service being included in this bid solicitation.  As such, United Maintenance is not 
currently responsible for the work.   

Question 87: Who is currently performing the T1 Façade cleaning, United Maintenance Employees or 
subcontracted. 

a. If they are subcontract workers, what is the name of the company that is performing 
this service? 

Response: This is a new service being included in this bid solicitation.  As such, United Maintenance is not 
currently responsible for the work.   

Question 88: The RFP provided the list of equipment that is required, but does not indicate a minimum 
amount of equipment that is required to meet the contractual requirements. Is there a 
minimum number of each piece of equipment required? 

Response: Please refer to section 5.12 “Minimum Performance Requirements” of the solicitation document.   
The listing in Exhibit 4 was provided to give background on what the current contractor utilizes.  It 
is not a directive as to what equipment is required or necessarily an all-inclusive list of all 
equipment utilized by the current Contractor. Bidders must determine their equipment 
requirements based on what is necessary to fulfill the contract’s requirements.    

Question 89: Does the cleaning equipment need to be new? 
a. If the cleaning equipment needs to be new, is that the same for United Maintenance? 

Response: No, just serviceable as it is the Contractor’s responsibility to maintain their equipment which 
remains their property throughout the life of the contract and after contract termination / 
expiration. 

Question 90: In Section 5.26, page 89,  the RFP mentions non-routine window cleaning is performed from 
10PM to 4AM, but the schedules indicates in 10PM to 630AM.  What is the right non-routine 
window cleaning time? 

a. Same with Terminal 2, last paragraph, page 91 state non-routine is between 10PM to 
4AM but the schedule indicates 10PM to 630AM? 

Response: Non-routine professional window cleaning must be performed, from 10 p.m. to 6:30 a.m.  

Question 91: What is the current average number of employee call-offs United Maintenance experiences on 
a daily basis. 

Response: This answer is not deemed relevant to the bid. It is Contractor’s responsibility to maintain 
minimum staffing levels. 

Question 92: Are the supervisor positions part of the Minimum Staffing requirement that would be 
calculated in liquid damages for being short staffed? 

Response: Please see section 5.25 “Minimum Routine Custodial Shift Staffing Allocations.   Yes, custodian and 
custodian supervisors as well as window cleaners and window cleaner supervisors are included 
and subject to reductions in compensation in the event they are not meeting minimum staffing 
requirements.    

Question 93: Since this contract has financial penalties, if you are unable to meet the minimum staffing 
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requirements, we are considering additional staffing to eliminate any penalties.  How do we 
enter them into the Supplementary Proposal Page, page 140, when the number of workers per 
day and average hours/month is already predetermined on the work sheet? 

Response: That cost would be captured as an overhead expanse that it is built into the fully loaded hourly 
rates which the Contractor should be able to best determine this estimated cost in their pricing 
model. 

Question 94: In the event there is a Passenger Assistance Program Event goes into effect, will we be allowed 
to charge OT rates for additional hours worked if the third shift needs to remain on the clock 
beyond their schedule shift time.  The additional time is to complete the routine daily tasks that 
were not able to complete, because Custodial Agents and Supervisors where busy 
accomplishing the SOP for the Passenger Assistance Program? 

Response: No, Contractor is expected to reallocate existing staff.  

Question 95: Is Employee Parking provided by the City? 
a. If not what is the cost per employee per month? 

Response: No, please see answer to question 68. 

Question 96: If we decide to install all new dispensing and disposal equipment, I understand the equipment 
needs to be handed over the CDA for installation. 
       a.   Is there an associated charge for the installation. 
       b.   What is the approximate timeline the installation could be completed.  Need to consider      
holding two consumable supply inventories. 

Response: A. There is no charge for installation. 
B. Installation will be prompt.  

Question 97: Are there designated areas to pressure wash trash containers. 
a. Does it already have a pressure washer 

Response: No.  The Contractor is not to remove trash containers from the terminal public areas.  Containers 
should be cleaned by hand, in place unless otherwise directed by the Commissioner. 

Question 98: Is there a designated location for a washer and dryer? 

Response: See Section 5.15, “Contractor Support Areas”.  No, there is not a designated location, however this 
equipment needs to be placed in a designated Contractor support area.    The Contractor would be 
responsible for the cost of any necessary infrastructure improvements (i.e. venting) installation 
and equipment as well as any ongoing utility costs.     

Question 99: The minimum staffing numbers you have provided in section 5.25, do those head count 
numbers include the high profile restroom staffing requirements in Exhibit 3, or are they 
additional staffing requirements? 

Response: Yes.  

Question 100: How many office/breakroom location are provided.   
a. Where are they located? 

Response: Please see Exhibit 9 “Custodial Support Space” of the solicitation document.   

Question 101: How current is the consumable usage information? 
       a.     Is it recent?  
       b.     Was it provided by United Maintenance? 

Response: Yes to both questions.  

Question 102: If the number of bathrooms increases by up to 15 additional restrooms, how should we account 
for the increased cost of consumables as the contract doesn’t allow for price changes? 

Response: Please see answer to question 11. 

Question 103: 3H has additional question for 2%, 4%, 6% of the City-based  business incentive of the bid spec. 
page 145, 
  
Will the City-based business bidders be a benefits with 2%, 4% or 6% of the their bid price? 
  
For example,  
Non potential City-based business bidder will be proposed $100,000.00 per month. 
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It will be matched with City-based business bidder as follows: 
  
2% benefit : $98,000.00 / month 
4% benefit: $96,000.00/month 
6% benefit: $94,000.00/month 
 
Please address. 

Response: The Bid Incentives provided are only used for comparison purposes in bid evaluation. The total bid 
price is applied a bid incentive only if the bidder fulfills all the requirements of the bid incentive. 

Question 104: Per Section 5.28. Contractor Qualifications, 
Contractor must provide a list of containing a minimum of the three similar project. 
 
Will the potential bidder., who has not experienced with airport contract yet, for this project 
not be qualified.? 
If so, 3H would like to appeal this requirement.  
It will not be applied to Equal Business Opportunity for emerging firm for Airport contract  
even it has a plenty of experiences for safety Public facilities. 

Response: A bidder without airport experience will be considered for award to the extent the bidder has 
performed work of a similar size and scope. The bidder must have demonstrated experience in 
multiple high traffic restrooms in large scale public and/or commercial peak driven facilities. 

Question 105: In the specs (exhibit 4) we note the bags are actually bio-degradable, is it true? 

Response: Plastic bags are considered bio-degradable as they are poly-urethane based however it is 
understood that the time period for them to degrade is a extremely long period of time.  CDA is 
not expecting the Contractor to provide bags quickly degrade. 

Question 106: Is it too late to question whether the liners are Low or high density and what color the bags 
are?  This is important when bidding 

Response: The density of the bags that are to be utilized by the Contractor is up to their discretion.  The 
Contractor should utilize bags that they believe are best suited to the particular application.    
With respect to bag color, for bags that are utilized in recycling containers the bags must be blue.   
For all other bags the Contractor may utilize bags of any color except blue. 

Question 107: What color are these poly garbage bags. 

Response: See answer to question 106. 

Question 108: What material is each item (high density/low density); in particular, the 17x17x.45mil bags 
seem like they might possibly be high density? 

Response: See answer to question 106. 

Question 109: Are samples of currently used bags available for pickup (this is big help, tells us a lot of 
information and can greatly affect pricing) 

Response: No, samples are not available for review.   Please see answer to question 106. 

Question 110: Are the poly garbage bags being stored at the airport, or to be brought with the custodial 
services company? 

Response: Please see section 5.14, " Materials Handling and Storage"   regarding material storage 
requirements. 

Question 111: Can you expand in detail the background screening required of the custodians for this RFP? 

Response: Please see Section 3.6.1.3, "Airport Security Badges".  Also, Information on employee badging at 
the airport can be viewed on the CDA website at 
https://app.flychicago.com/badging/ 

Question 112: What brand of the feminine hygiene disposal system do you have in place now at the airport? 

Response: The current Feminine Hygiene Disposal system utilized at O'Hare is   Hygiene Solutions   Pursuant 
to contract section 5.21.1, Feminine Hygiene Disposal Equipment and Service Requirements", none 
of the existing equipment currently being utilized at the Airport will be available for the Contractor 
to utilize.    As such, the Contractor may elect to contract with any service provider that meets the 
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requirements noted in the specifications. 

Question 113: What type and style # of air fresheners are you using now in the restrooms? 

Response: As noted in contract section 5.21, "Feminine Hygiene Disposal System, Diaper and Napkin 
Dispensers, Air Freshener System, Wall Mounted Sharp Disposal System and Hand Sanitizer 
Maintenance" item L., the air fresheners in use at O'Hare are Technical Concepts TCell #402092. 

Question 114: Where is line # 5 & 6: under bid lines? Do you just want an overtime rate? Hourly? 

Response: Pursuant to section 5.27.5, "Bid Lines 5 & 6" this is to be an overtime rate and is to be priced per 
hour. 

Question 115: We are at the stage of entering our hourly wages paid, along with fully loaded and, to be 
honest, the figures that are currently showing in the bid Line 1 proposal “Average Hours 
Monthly” column have thrown us for a loop. Are these monthly hour averages hours we are to 
price at?  For instance – under Custodian, the monthly average stated is 58,893.12 hours, which 
seems a bit high for a total of 242 workers at 8 hours a day, even if you include holidays and 
vacations, it still seems a bit high. 

Response: The 58k hours is based on 30.416 days per month (derived from 365 days per year /12 months per 
year) x 242 workers per day x 8 hours per day. 

Question 116: Is there any chance that the current storage on site at the terminals would be moved on a 
contractor? 

Response: Please see section 5.15 "Contractors Support Area" Page 78 of the solicitation document. 

Question 117: Can you confirm again that there is 1 central place for trash at each terminal and that it is not 
off site far away? 

Response: Yes, The CDA has various dumpsites around the terminal areas that are short distances from the 
terminals or located within the terminal areas.  Please see section 5.22 "Custodial and Widow 
Cleaning Services" page 84, bullet point six of the solicitation document. 

Question 118: Will the awarded contractor have access to the City of Chicago repeater system for our radios? 
If there is a cost, what is it? 

Response: There will be no access to the City of Chicago repeater system. 



 

Revised 24-Sept-2018 

Bidder's Commitment To Utilize Business Enterprises Owned By People With Disabilities (BEPD)  
The BEPD Incentive as described in Section 2-92-337 of the Municipal Code of Chicago ("MCC") is applicable to 
competitively bid contracts funded in whole by City funds. Bidder must submit this form with the bid if it desires to 
be considered for this bid incentive.  Bidders that do not submit this page with their bid will not be eligible for this 
bid incentive.  Attach additional sheets if necessary.   

Note:  The CPO may request additional information or documentation before determining to apply the preference.   

1.  Contract title: Comprehensive Custodial/Window Cleaning & etc. Chicago O’Hare  Spec. #: 802753 

2. The value of work performed by BEPD prime contractors or subcontractors (as defined in MCC 2-92-586 
and the applicable bid solicitation) that Bidder commits to provide will be what percentage of the total 
dollar value of the contract? 

(    ) 2% to 5%-- 1% incentive   (    ) 6% to 9%-- 2% incentive             

(     ) 10% to 13%-- 3% incentive   (    ) 14% or greater-- 4% incentive  

3. Is Bidder a certified BEPD?  If yes, attach a copy of the certification letter and state percentage of work to 
be self-performed:   . 

4. Will Bidder seek credit for work performed by BEPD subcontractors?  If yes, list each subcontractor to be 
used, the percentage of work to be performed, and attach a copy of the certification letter for each: 

             

             

Bidder understands that if it fails to utilize the committed percentage of BEPD subcontractors, under MCC 2-92-
337 it may be fined in an amount equal to three times the amount of the bid incentive allocated, unless the prime 
contractor can demonstrate that due to circumstances beyond the prime contractor’s control, the prime 
contractor for good cause was unable to retain the percentage of BEPD subcontractors throughout the duration of 
the contract period.  Bidder understands that it may be required to produce records to the CPO to verify the 
information provided.   

Under penalty of perjury the person signing below: (1) warrants that he/she is authorized to execute this Affidavit 
on behalf of bidder, and (2) warrants that all certifications and statements contained in this Affidavit are true, 
accurate, and complete as of the date of execution. 

Name of Bidder:     

 (Print or Type)   

Signature of Authorized Officer:    

  

  (Signature) 

 

Title of Signatory:     

 (Print or Type) 

 

State of _________________________ 

County of ________________________ 

Signed and sworn (or affirmed) to before me on ____________ (date) by 

___________   ______ (name/s of person/s making statement). 

______________________ (Signature of Notary Public)                                                           (Seal) 
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Exhibit 14: Minimum Hourly Wages.

                              MINIMUM HOURLY WAGES

CURRENT EMPLOYEES
YEARS OF COMPLETED SERVICE

AT TIME OF AWARD Award 4/18/2019 4/6/2020

To To To

4/7/2019 4/5/2020 4/4/2021

<1 $14.60 $15.05 $15.55

<2 $15.10 $15.55 $16.05

<3 $15.60 $16.05 $16.55

<4 $16.10 $16.55 $17.05

4+ $18.00 $18.45 $18.95

New Hired Employees Award 4/8/2019 4/6/2020

To To To

4/7/2019 4/5/2020 4/4/2021

First Year $14.60 $15.05 $15.55

Second Year $15.55 $16.05

Third Year $16.55

Fourth Year

Fifth Year

*Rates beyond 4/4/2021 will be determined by new BOMA Agreement
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Exhibit 15: Seniority Summary of Present Workforce.

CUSTODIAL WORKERS HIRE DATE POSITION

UM_ORD_2012 2/08/1999 Transfer - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/26/2007 Transfer - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 11/23/2008 Transfer - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/1/2008 Transfer - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/21/2009 Transfer - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/7/2009 Transfer - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/7/2009 Transfer - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/31/2009 Transfer - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/5/2010 Transfer - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/5/2010 Transfer - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/1/2010 Transfer - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian
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UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 LOA* - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012  Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 LOA* - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Manager/Supervisor

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Manager/Supervisor

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Manager/Supervisor

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Manager/Supervisor

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Manager/Supervisor

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Manager/Supervisor

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Supervisor/Lead

UM_ORD_2012 12/30/2012 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/30/2012 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/30/2012 FT-Supervisor

UM_ORD_2012 12/30/2012 Supervisor/Lead

UM_ORD_2012 1/13/2013 Custodian
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UM_ORD_2012 4/18/2013 LOA - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/28/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/28/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/28/2013 FT-Supervisor

UM_ORD_2012 4/28/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/06/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/06/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/06/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/06/2013 Lead Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/06/2013 Lead Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/06/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/14/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/14/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/14/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/14/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/18/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/21/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/30/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/11/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/11/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/11/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/18/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/25/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/25/2013 Lead Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/31/2013 Lead Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/26/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/31/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/01/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/01/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/01/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/01/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/01/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/01/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/05/2013 LOA* - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/05/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/05/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/05/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/05/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/05/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/05/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/08/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/08/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/08/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/08/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/15/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/17/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/20/2013 Custodian
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UM_ORD_2012 9/23/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/23/2013 Lead Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/24/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/24/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/26/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/01/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/16/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/17/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 11/21/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/08/2013 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/23/2014 LOA* - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/05/2014 Lead Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/05/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/23/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/09/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/16/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/16/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/16/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/10/2014 Manager/Supervisor

UM_ORD_2012 4/10/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/10/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/13/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/15/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/15/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/05/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/11/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/13/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/18/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/30/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/01/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/08/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/20/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/20/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/20/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/20/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/20/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/20/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/02/2014 LOA* - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/02/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/05/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/06/2014 LOA* - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/08/2014 Supervisor/Lead

UM_ORD_2012 7/08/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/08/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/13/2014 LOA* - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/13/2014 Custodian
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UM_ORD_2012 7/13/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/13/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/13/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/13/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/15/2014 LOA* - Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/17/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/17/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/24/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/24/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/26/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/19/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/23/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/23/2014 Supervisor/Lead

UM_ORD_2012 12/07/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/21/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/21/2014 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/11/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/25/2015 Supervisor/Lead

UM_ORD_2012 1/25/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/22/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/22/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/22/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/06/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/15/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/15/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/26/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/17/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/17/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/28/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/26/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/26/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/11/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/18/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/18/2015 Supervisor/Lead

UM_ORD_2012 10/25/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 11/15/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 11/15/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 11/15/2015 FT-Supervisor

UM_ORD_2012 11/15/2015 FT-Supervisor

UM_ORD_2012 11/15/2015 Lead Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/20/2015 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/10/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/17/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/17/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/31/2016 LOA*- Custodian
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UM_ORD_2012 2/07/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/14/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/10/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/20/2016 LOA- Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/20/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/20/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/03/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/03/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/17/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/22/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/19/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/24/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/11/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/21/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/21/2016 Supervisor/Lead

UM_ORD_2012 7/28/2016 Supervisor/Lead

UM_ORD_2012 7/28/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/16/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/21/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/02/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/29/2016 FT-Supervisor

UM_ORD_2012 10/05/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/05/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/08/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/09/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/15/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/16/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/23/2016 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/05/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/05/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/20/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/25/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/25/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/01/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/03/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/08/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/15/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/22/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/09/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/10/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/10/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/16/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/23/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/24/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/04/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/06/2017 Custodian
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UM_ORD_2012 4/06/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/06/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/06/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/06/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/14/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/01/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/07/2017 LOA*- Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/22/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/23/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/27/2017 LOA*- Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/05/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/10/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/21/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/14/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/22/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/25/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/25/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/27/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 9/27/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/02/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/10/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/13/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/27/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 10/27/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 11/16/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 11/25/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 11/29/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 11/30/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/01/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 12/06/2017 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/13/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/16/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/24/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/24/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/30/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/30/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/30/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 1/31/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/01/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/20/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/20/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/20/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/21/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/21/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/21/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 2/21/2018 Custodian
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UM_ORD_2012 2/28/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/20/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/27/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/28/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 3/28/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/03/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/04/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/04/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/10/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/17/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/17/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/17/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 4/18/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/14/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/14/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/14/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/14/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/16/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/21/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/21/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/21/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/21/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 5/21/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/06/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/06/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/06/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 6/18/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/18/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/24/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/31/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/31/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 7/31/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/07/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/07/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/07/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/07/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/07/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/07/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/07/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/07/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/07/2018 Custodian

UM_ORD_2012 8/07/2018 Custodian

*LOA (Leave of Absence)

WINDOW WASHERS HIRE DATE POSITION

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Window Washers
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UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Window Washers

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Window Washers

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Window Washers

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Window Washers

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Window Washers

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Window Washers

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Window Washers Foreman-

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Window Washers Foreman-

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Window Washers Foreman-

UM_ORD_2012 12/02/2012 Window Washers Foreman-

UM_ORD_2012 1/13/2013 Window Washers Foreman-

UM_ORD_2012 9/01/2013 Window Washers

UM_ORD_2012 9/01/2013 Window Washers

UM_ORD_2012 4/15/2013 Window Washers Foreman-

UM_ORD_2012 5/01/2014 Window Washers

UM_ORD_2012 11/30/2014 Window Washers

UM_ORD_2012 4/13/2014 Window Washers

UM_ORD_2012 1/15/2016 Window Washers
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SUPPLEMENTARY PROPOSAL PAGE BID LINE ITEM 1

COMPREHENSIVE CUSTODIAL, WINDOW CLEANING AND RELATED HYGIENE AND DISPOSAL SERVICE FOR O'HARE INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

Bid Line Item 1 Terminal 1-3 Custodian and Window Cleaning Priced Per Month

CALCULATION OF BID PRICE WORKSHEET

LABOR COSTS

LABOR - CUSTODIAN AND WINDOW WASHERS

HOURLY WAGES FULLY LOADED AVERAGE HOURS/

PAID TO WORKER HOURLY W/BENEFITS WORKERS/DAY HOURS/DAY MONTHLY PRICE/MONTH*

Custodian 242 8 58,893.12
Custodian Supervisor 9 8 2,190.24

Window Washer 40 8 6,774.40

Window Washer Supervisor 6 8 1,016
LABOR SUB-TOTALLABOR SUB-TOTAL $__________

Non-Labor Costs MONTHLY PRICE

Labor Management $_______

Feminine Hygiene Disposal $_______
Diaper & Feminine Hygiene Dispensers $_______

Sharps Disposal $_______
Air Fresheners $_______

Paper Products $_______

Plastic Liners $_______

Chemical/Cleaning Products $_______
Cleanng Supplies ( Mops, Carts, Etc.) $_______
Cleaning Equipment (Buffers, Vacuums, Scrubbers) $_______

Lift Equipment $_______

Electric Carts $_______

Maintenance of Equipment $_______
NON-LABOR SUB-TOTAL $_______

TOTAL $_______ MONTHLY FIXED PRICE Line Item 1

Sum of components must equal monthly bid price

Monthly Bid Price $___________
Line Item 1 X 60 Months

Line Item 1 Total Bid Price $__________

*For calculating the monthly price the following assumptions should be made.
Custodians and Custodians Supervisors - Monthly price should be based on 30.42 Days per month (365/12)
Window Washers and Window Washer Supervisors - Monthly price should be based on 21.17 Days per month (52 X 5) - 6
Assume average seniority to be at minimum three years of service.
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SUPPLEMENTARY PROPOSAL PAGE BID LINE ITEM 2

COMPREHENSIVE CUSTODIAL, WINDOW CLEANING AND RELATED HYGIENE AND DISPOSAL SERVICE FOR O'HARE INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

Bid Line Item 2 - Terminal Façade Cleaning Price Per Each Cleaning

CALCULATION OF BID PRICE WORKSHEET

LABOR COSTS

FULLY LOADED ESTIMATED PRICE PER EACH
HOURLY W/BENEFITS HOURS CLEANING

Custodian $ $
Custodian Supervisor $ $
Window Washer $ $
Window Washer Supervisor $ $

LABOR SUB-TOTAL $______________

Non-Labor Costs PRICE PER EACH CLEANING
Labor Management $
Chemical/Cleaning Products/Equipment/Supplies $
Lift Equipment $

NON LABOR SUBTOTAL $

TOTAL $____________ Line Item 2 Unit Price Per Each Cleaning

Sum of sub total components must equal per each cleaning bid pricing

Bid Price Per Each Cleaning $___________
Line Item 2 unit price X 10
Line Item 2 Total Bid Price $__________
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SUPPLEMENTARY PROPOSAL PAGE BID LINE ITEM 3

COMPREHENSIVE CUSTODIAL, WINDOW CLEANING AND RELATED HYGIENE AND DISPOSAL SERVICE FOR O'HARE INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

Bid Line Item 3 Exterior Cleaning at South FAA Tower Price Per Each Cleaning

CALCULATION OF BID PRICE WORKSHEET

LABOR COSTS

FULLY LOADED ESTIMATED PRICE PER EACH
HOURLY W/BENEFITS HOURS CLEANING

Custodian $ $
Custodian Supervisor $ $
Window Washer $ $
Window Washer Supervisor $ $

LABOR SUB-TOTAL $

Non-Labor Costs PRICE FOR EACH CLEANING
Labor Management $_______
Chemical/Cleaning Products/Equipment/Supplies $_______
Lift Equipment $_______

NON LABOR SUBTOTAL $___________
TOTAL $___________ Line Item 3 Unit Price Per Each Cleaning

Sum of sub total components must equal per each cleaning bid price

Bid Price Per Each Cleaning $___________
Line Item 3 unit price X 10 Cleanings
Line Item 3 Total Bid Price $__________
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SUPPLEMENTARY PROPOSAL PAGE BID LINE ITEM 4

COMPREHENSIVE CUSTODIAL, WINDOW CLEANING AND RELATED HYGIENE AND DISPOSAL SERVICE FOR O'HARE INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

Bid Line Item 4 Exterior Cleaning at North FAA Tower Price for Each Cleaning

CALCULATION OF BID PRICE WORKSHEET

LABOR COSTS

FULLY LOADED ESTIMATED PRICE PER EACH
HOURLY W/BENEFITS HOURS CLEANING

Custodian $ $
Custodian Supervisor $ $
Window Washer $ $
Window Washer Supervisor $ $

LABOR SUB-TOTAL $____________

Non-Labor Costs PRICE FOR EACH CLEANING
Labor Management $_______
Chemical/Cleaning Products/Equipment/Supplies $_______
Lift Equipment $_______

NON LABOR SUBTOTAL $

TOTAL $____________ Line Item 4 Unit Price Per Each Cleaning

Sum of sub total components must equal per each cleaning bid price

Bid Price Per Each Cleaning $___________
Line Item 4 unit price X 10 Cleanings
Line Item 4 Total Bid Price $__________
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